
  
1030 Front Street, P.O. Box 40 

Brooten, MN 56316 
 

Office: 320-346-2869  
 Fax: 320-346-2410 

www.nfcrwd.org       nfcrwsd@tds.net 
 

  Regular Meeting – Agenda 
December 10, 2018 

Located at: 1030 Front Street at 1:00 p.m. 
Agenda Codes: BA-Board Action Required, D-Discussion Item 

Time   
Packet 
Page BA / D 

12:00  Closed Session-Employee Reviews   
1:00 1. Call to Order – President Wuertz   

  
 2. Review & Approve Agenda - President Wuertz  BA 

 Additional items or correction to be added to the agenda for action or 
information. 

  

  
 3. Consent Agenda Items (All items approved by one motion)  BA 

 Treasurer’s Report and Bills to December 10, 2018.   
 a.  Check Register  - 106 Bonanza Checking Acct Page 1  
 b. P & L Detail – All Accounts Page 3  
 c. Balance Sheet – All Accounts Page 7  
     

4. Minutes   
 a. November 12, 2018 Regular Meeting Minutes Page 9 BA 

 

 5. Open Discussion from the Public 
 Opportunity for the public to address the NFCRWD Board of Managers.   

   

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 6. Staff Reports 

 a. Administrator’s Report – Cris Skonard 
 1. Activities  D 
 2. MAWD Review  D/BA 
 3. CAC Meeting  D/BA 
 4. Watershed Boundary Change Resolution Page 15 D/BA 
 5. 1W1P-Update/Meetings  D/BA 
 6. End of Year Meeting  D/BA 
 7. Evaluations/Wage Review  D/BA 
 8. Additional Business   
 b. Watershed Project Coordinator’s Report – Christopher Lundeen 
 1. Activity Report  D 

 c. Funds Manager / Administrative Assistant’s Report – Christine Knutson 
 1. As reported in Financial Statements   
     
     

http://www.nfcrwd.org/


  
1030 Front Street, P.O. Box 40 

Brooten, MN 56316 
 

Office: 320-346-2869  
 Fax: 320-346-2410 

www.nfcrwd.org       nfcrwsd@tds.net 
 

Time   
Packet 
Page BA / D 

 7. Program Reports 
 a. Permit Report  - None  D/BA 
     
 b. Drainage Report – Cris Skonard  

 1. CD 32 Repair: Status Update:  
Mitchell Control Structure 

 
 

 
D/BA 

 2. CD7: Buffer Payment Update  D/BA 

 3. JD 1 Main and Branches: Status Update: 
HEI Proposal-CR22 to Mud Lake 
Babekuhl Letter 

 
Page 18 
Page 24 

 
D/BA 
D/BA 

 4. Other Ditch Business -  D 

 c.  Board Member Reports 
   
 8. Items for Next Meeting Agenda 
   

 9. Calendar Review 

 Meeting Date Meeting Description Meeting Location Meeting Time 

 Wed, Dec 12 SWAG Spicer 9:00 am 

 Thu, Dec 13 1W1P-PWG Litchfield 9:00 am 

 Fri, Dec 14 BWSR Grants Waite Park 9:00 am 

 Thu, Dec 20 BWSR-1W1P RCPP Grand Rapids 9:00 am 

 Wed, Jan 2 1W1P-PC Litchfield 10:00 am 

 Mon, Jan 7 Stearns SWCD Brooten 1:00 pm 

   
 10. FYI Items 

   None  
    

 11. Adjournment 
*** Next meeting: Monday, January 14, 2019 at 1:00 pm *** 

http://www.nfcrwd.org/


Page 1 of 24



Page 2 of 24



Page 3 of 24



Page 4 of 24



Page 5 of 24



Page 6 of 24



Page 7 of 24



Page 8 of 24



NORTH FORK CROW RIVER WATERSHED DISTRICT 
BOARD OF MANAGERS 

Proposed Regular Meeting Minutes 
November 13, 2018 

 
Managers Present: Gary Berndt, Bob Brauchler, John Hanson and James Wuertz  
Manager Absent: James Barchenger 
Staff Present: Cris Skonard, Christine Knutson and Christopher Lundeen 
Others Present: Maury Noonan (Rinke Noonan), Boyd Fischer, Steve Fuchs, Virgil Fuchs, David 

Johnson, Steve Notch (Stearns County Commissioner), Joe Lewis (Houston 
Engineering, Inc.), Bonita Radermacher, Ken Radermacher, Jim Weller, Dale 
Wilson and others  

Recording Secretary:  Diane Beck, Legal & Administrative Assistants, Inc. (LAA) 
 
CALL TO ORDER—President James Wuertz called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m. 
 

AGENDA—Added to the agenda under the Administrator’s Report was CAC discussion/clarification from 
October 8th meeting. 

 

IT WAS MOVED BY Bob Brauchler SECONDED BY Gary Berndt, to approve the Agenda with the 
addition under the Administrator’s Report of CAC discussion/clarification from October 8th 
meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA—Manager Berndt inquired if there could be a cutoff date for the bills in order to 
eliminate the need for two copies of the meeting financials (meeting packet and NFCRWD meeting). 
Cris Skonard commented the reason for two copies is additional bills, which need to be paid, are 
received after the meeting packets are mailed and emailed. 
 

IT WAS MOVED BY Bob Brauchler, SECONDED BY John Hanson, to approve the following 
Consent Agenda: 

1. Treasurer’s Report and bills to November 13, 2018 
a. Check register—106 Bonanza checking account 
b. Profit & Loss Detail—all accounts 
c. Balance Sheet—all accounts  
Roll call vote was taken. 

  Affirmative: Brauchler, Berndt, Hanson and Wuertz  
 Opposed: None 
  MOTION CARRIED. 

 
MINUTES—Skonard and Manager Hanson reviewed the October 8th minutes this afternoon. Skonard 
shared revisions were made under: 

• Stearns CD 37 motion with the addition of “plus applicable filing fees with prepays due by 
November 9, 2018.” 

• Stearns CD7 motion: clarifier added (original motion to pay was made at the September Board 
meeting.) 

• Under Permit Application of Tom’s Backhoe Service, Inc.: addition of pre-construction meeting 
date of October 11, 2018. 

• Under Drainage Reports, CD32 Repair: added landowner attendee names “Brad Marthaler, 
Boyd Fischer, Jim Weller, Roger Walz and John Randall.” 

 

Page 9 of 24



Hanson reported most of the corrections were for clarification and minor spelling purposes and felt the 
minutes looked good as recorded. 
 

IT WAS MOVED BY Bob Brauchler, SECONDED BY John Hanson, to approve the October 8, 2018 
Proposed Regular Meeting Minutes with minor corrections as noted above.   

 
MINUTES—The October 24, 2018 Proposed Special Meeting Minutes were presented with Manager 
Hanson noting a minor correction should be made in the paragraph that begins with “Discussion 
followed.” In the second sentence, the word ‘know’ should be corrected to ‘known.’ 
 

 IT WAS MOVED BY Bob Brauchler, SECONDED BY, Gary Berndt, to approve the October 24, 
2018 Proposed Special Meeting minutes as corrected.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

Open Discussion from the Public. Bonita Radermacher raised a question on the drainage 
assessments of CD36 and CD37 as printed in the October 8th minutes, specifically the $5,248 
suggested assessment and the possible $2,000 costs for the beaver dam repairs. Christine Knutson, 
Funds Manager, provided an in-depth explanation regarding past assessment charges to landowners. 
 

Virgil Fuchs expressed concerns with the taxes/assessments for CD37 and landowners not receiving an 
explanation of where dollars go. Bonita Radermacher concurred landowners received no explanation 
why their ditch taxes/assessments were raised to 20% and inquired who has the authority to make the 
decision. Virgil Fuchs shared information from a 1986 document. Knutson shared ditch 
taxes/assessment information from previous years and reported assessments were done by Stearns 
County prior to the formation of the North Fork Crow River Watershed District (NFCRWD). Skonard 
commented NRCRWD is being as transparent as possible and that is why redetermination efforts are 
being done by NFCRWD. Chair Wuertz stated NFCRWD needs to review the files in order to respond 
appropriately. Knutson also shared the audit process relating to ditch taxes/assessments. 
Redetermination is needed so landowners are charged fairly.  Skonard commented the drainage area is 
not being enlarged, but expanding the legal boundaries to the drained area.  
 

Dale Wilson inquired about the JD1 lateral coming out of Grove Lake, Branch 2 on the main. Joe Lewis 
stated this was brought up at last month’s meeting and the Board approved the repairs. As to the 
lateral, Skonard shared that excavation of the ditch will be performed to the original bottom elevation 
and if there is a culvert, it will also be lowered. Skonard is obtaining quotes for cleaning out the ditch.  
 

Discussion also held on JD1 north of Pope County Road 22. Lewis stated the Department of Natural 
Resources (DNR) has provided preliminary approval. Tree removal will begin this winter with ditch 
repair being done in 2019, pending written approval. 
 

Skonard stated, after approval, the contractor will be able to complete the repairs/maintenance. 
David Johnson inquired as to sediment buildup and when can a landowner ask for it to be 
maintained? Manager Berndt stated there has been some rule changes regarding repair and 
inspection of the ditches may be needed. 

 
STAFF REPORTS— 
Administrator’s Report. 

Activities.  
• Attended a meeting with Brooten city representatives regarding the infrastructure 
improvement project 
• Attended the Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources (BWSR) Academy; there were very 

interesting topics 
 

Page 10 of 24



CAC Appointments. Skonard referred to the 2018 CAC (Citizens Advisory Committee) member 
attendance included in the meeting packet and shared that the 2019 CAC member appointments 
will be done at the December meeting. Manager Hanson suggested the NFCRWD contact current 
members as to their interest in serving in 2019. Two current members have chosen not to serve in 
2019. President Wuertz suggested posting the information on the website. Lundeen will also email 
the current members. Fischer inquired about the time of the last CAC meeting; Lundeen shared the 
meeting time was listed in the minutes. 
 

Manager Berndt discussed attendance of the NFCRWD Board members at CAC meetings and 
felt that manager input should be permitted from a citizen/landowner perspective. President 
Wuertz shared one board member will be appointed to attend CAC meetings; however, a 
second manager can also attend. Discussion was held of the role of NFCRWD managers at 
meetings. Manager Hanson felt the manager’s role is for observation; however, Attorney 
Noonan shared it is a policy decision. 
 

MAWD Delegates. Skonard stated at the last meeting the NFCRWD Board appointed President 
Wuertz and Manager Hanson as delegates for the Minnesota Association of Water Districts 
(MAWD) 2018 Annual Conference; however, Manager Hanson will not able to attend. 

 

IT WAS MOVED BY Bob Brauchler, SECONDED BY Gary Berndt, to appoint James 
Barchenger as the North Fork Crow River Watershed District delegate to the 
Minnesota Association of Watershed Districts 2018 Annual Conference. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 
MAWD Resolutions Review (MAWD Convention Packet). The resolutions listed below have been 
reviewed by the Executive Committee and their recommendations are posted online. 
• Allow an increase manager compensation 
• Increase or remove the $250,000 general fund tax level limit 
• Require timely appointments to the BWSR Board 
• Require watershed district permits for DNR 
• Adjust WD statutory borrowing limit 
• Ensure timely updates to wildlife management area (WMS) plans 
• Remove impediments to Common Carp removal in lakes 
• Reinforce existing rights to maintain/repair 103E drainage systems 
• Recommend Administration for Clean Water Council Appointments 
 

Skonard feels there is nothing adverse in the resolutions that affect the NFCRWD. It was the 
consensus of the NFCRWD Board to instruct NFCRWD delegates to concur with the resolution 
changes unless an issue arises during discussion of the resolutions. 

 
Watershed Boundary Change.  Skonard referred to the October 11, 2018 letter from Attorney Kurt 
Deter regarding the procedures for requesting a boundary change for NFCRWD. Skonard shared 
that CD29 and CD37 will be affected by the boundary changes (acreage will be increased).  

 

IT WAS MOVED BY Gary Berndt, SECONDED BY Bob Brauchler, to have Attorney Kurt 
Deter draw up a resolution as to the proposed boundary change for the North 
Fork Crow River Watershed District.  MOTION CARRIED.  

 

Attorney Noonan will speak with Attorney Deter and Skonard will contact Middle Fork Watershed 
District to keep them informed and possibly set up an information meeting. 
 

Page 11 of 24



End-of-Year Meeting. Skonard suggested holding the end-of-year-meeting on December 26th. 
Discussion was held and the issue will be discussed at the December regular meeting where a day 
and time will be selected. 
 

Day after Thanksgiving-Office Closed. Skonard suggested the NFCRWD office be closed the day 
after Thanksgiving. 

 

IT WAS MOVED BY Bob Brauchler, SECONDED BY John Hanson, to close the North Fork 
Crow River Watershed District office on Friday, November 23, 2018.  MOTION 
CARRIED.  

 
Resolution 2018-08 Flex Plan Renewal. Skonard presented the Resolution 2018-08 regarding 
renewing flexible benefits for 2019. 

 

IT WAS MOVED BY Bob Brauchler, SECONDED BY John Hanson, to approve North Fork 
Crow River Watershed District Resolution 2018-08. 

  Roll call vote was taken. 
  Affirmative: Berndt, Brauchler, Hanson and Wuertz  
  Opposed: None 
 MOTION CARRIED. 
 

Evaluations/Wage Review. Skonard shared that the evaluation/wage review is needed prior to the 
December 10th board meeting. The Board will meet at noon on December 10th in this regard. 

 
Watershed Project Coordinator’s Report. 

Activity Report. Christopher Lundeen shared the following information on tasks completed last 
month: 
• Submitted all data for Stearns County grant applications 
• Applied for Stearns County AIS grant for boat inspectors and completed the end of year AIS 

report for Stearns County 
• Is conducting WRAP meetings for civic organizations 
• Attended the Water Resources Conference in St. Paul and reported good information was 

presented on project management, marketing, etc. 
• Holding cover crops discussions 
 

When questioned, Lundeen responded a full monitoring report will be available on or by 
February. He can provide a preliminary report, but additional data is needed from the state for 
the final report. 

 

Funds Manager/Administrative Assistant’s Report. As reported. 
 

 
PROGRAM REPORTS 

 

Permit Reports – Tom’s Backhoe Service, Inc. Skonard reported on the emergency meeting held on 
October 24th to address flooding issues and potential permit.  The discharge point was moved to a 
gravel area of land in order to prevent further flooding for a landowner. This action will not affect CD36 
and CD37. Skonard shared the discharge area will be inspected frequently. 

 

Drainage Report: CD 32 Repair: Status Update  
RESPEC/SBC. Skonard received an email from SBC stating based on the July meeting, they are now 
requesting payment for warranty work. Skonard will prepare a letter to SBC stating this is not 
acceptable. 
 Page 12 of 24



Boyd Fischer reviewed the CD32 landowner committee recommendations from the October 19th 
meeting in Padua. Discussions included: 
• Culvert under County Road 27 may be at an angle and the elevation needs to be reviewed. There 

may also be another culvert in question. Discussion include whether the District should go after the 
contractor’s bond since nothing has been getting done for the last two years. 

• The NFCRWD Board needs to take action on these issues. 
• The landowner committee consensus at the meeting was to go after the bond. 
• Attorney Noonan suggested contacting Roger Justin; Noonan will notify Justin. 
• Discussion held regarding Bankers Slough. 
• The committee requested a copy of the States Borders Construction contract. Skonard will provide 

a copy.  
• Discussed vandalism issues concerning damage to the inspection manhole. 
  

Discussion was held regarding next steps. Skonard commented that Attorney Justin provide further 
guidance and then additional discussions can take place. 

 
Inspections/Vandalism. Skonard reported manhole covers have been locked and MBC has placed a 
grate on the tile inlet. Skonard showed a photo of a manhole with an apparent bullet hole. Skonard 
notified the Sheriff’s. The Deputy Sheriff found discharged 20 gauge shells near the manhole. 

 

Landowner Committee Meeting. Information was covered above. 
 

Mitchell Control Structure. Skonard referred to the letter to Pat Mitchell from Attorney Kurt Deter 
regarding the Mitchell control structure and reported the structure will be repaired, and any future 
maintenance costs will be the responsibility of the landowner. 

 

IT WAS MOVED BY John Hanson, SECONDED BY Gary Berndt, to approve the repair order for 
the Pat Mitchell control structure.  MOTION CARRIED.  

 
Lewis reviewed the recommendations/options for the repair. Discussion was held. Skonard suggested 
using materials on hand at NFCRWD. The Board concurred with having Lewis prepare a draft for a 
modified control structure repair and obtain quotes and bring back to the next meeting for approval. 
 
CD7: Buffer Payment Update.  Skonard reported letters were sent to landowners stating buffer 
payments will be made and requested landowners to submit IRS W-9 forms. Skonard anticipates buffer 
payments will be made in December. 

 
JD 1 Main and Branches: Status Update. Skonard reviewed the repairs and quotes from MBC Drainage, 
LLC regarding JD1, Branch 11; JD1, Branch 12, Fork 6 and JD1 Branch 10 repairs. Prices will be 
competitive. Last month an engineers’ estimate of $60,000 was provided. 
 

IT WAS MOVED BY John Hanson, SECONDED BY Bob Brauchler, to accept MBC Drainage, 
LLC’s cost proposal for JD1, Branch 11 in the amount of $49,305.20. 

  Roll call vote was taken. 
  Affirmative: Brauchler, Hanson and Wuertz  
   Abstain: Berndt (Benefitted Landowner) 
  Opposed: None 
 MOTION CARRIED. 
 

 
 

Page 13 of 24



IT WAS MOVED BY Bob Brauchler, SECONDED BY John Hanson, to accept MBC Drainage, 
LLC’s cost proposal for JD1, Branch 12, Fork 6 in the amount of $4,180. 

  Roll call vote was taken. 
  Affirmative: Brauchler, Hanson and Wuertz  
   Abstain: Berndt (Benefitted Landowner) 
  Opposed: None 
 MOTION CARRIED. 
 

IT WAS MOVED BY Bob Brauchler, SECONDED BY John Hanson, to accept MBC Drainage, 
LLC’s cost proposal for JD1, Branch 10 in the amount of $4,490. 

  Roll call vote was taken. 
  Affirmative: Brauchler, Hanson and Wuertz  
   Abstain: Berndt (Benefitted Landowner) 
  Opposed: None 
 MOTION CARRIED. 
 

Dave Johnson inquired if a contract is in place for tree removal. Skonard shared he asked Nate Bettis to 
prepare a price quote for tree removal and will contact him again. 
 

SRWD JD1 Redetermination. Skonard reported he has received calls from landowners to make sure 
there is no overlap in ditch benefits between JD1 (SRWD) and JD1 (NFCRWD). 
 

Other Ditch Business.  None. 
 

Board Member Reports.  Discussion was held regarding the Regular Board meeting being held on 
October 8th.  It was decided at the September meeting to hold the regular October Board meeting on 
the second Monday of the Month.  Skonard reported the meeting date was announced at the 
September meeting and posted on the NFCRWD website. Manager Hanson stated clarification will be 
made regarding future meeting dates that fall on a federal holidays to avoid confusion. 
 

Items for Next Meeting Agenda. 
• End-of-Year Meeting 
• Evaluations/Wage Review 

 

Calendar Review. 
• November 15: WRAPS, Brooten 
• November 15: BVGWM, Glenwood 
• November 28: MAWA, Alexandria 
• November 29-December 1: MAWD Annual Meeting, Alexandria 
 

FYI Items. None. 
 

ADJOURNMENT— 
 

IT WAS MOVED BY John Hanson, SECONDED BY Gary Berndt, to adjourn the meeting. 
MOTION CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at approximately 9:10 p.m. 
 

NEXT MEETING—The next board meeting is Monday, December 10, 2018 at 1:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

John Hanson, Secretary Page 14 of 24



Page 15 of 24



Page 16 of 24



Page 17 of 24



 

 

December 5, 2018 
 
James Wuertz, President 
North Fork Crow River Watershed District 
1030 Front Street 
Brooten, MN 56316 

Subject: Proposal for Engineering Services for the Repair of Pope-Stearns JD 1 Main Trunk between CR 22 
and Mud Lake 

Dear President Wuertz and Members of the Board: 

We are pleased to provide an estimate for engineering services related to a repair on Pope-Stearns Judicial 
Ditch 1 Main Trunk between Pope County Road 22 and Mud Lake in Pope County. The estimated cost for 
development of the repair plans and specifications, regulatory coordination, construction staking and 
observation, as-built survey and record drawings is $18,945. 

Attachment A describes our intended scope of work and provides an estimated compensation based on the 
proposed scope of services for completing the project. We have enclosed our general Terms and Conditions 
for providing engineering services. If you would like us to proceed with this work, please sign both copies of 
the task order and return one copy to Houston Engineering, Inc. 

We look forward to the opportunity to continue serving the North Fork Crow River Watershed District. Please 
contact me directly if you have any questions regarding our proposal before this time. 

 
Sincerely, 
HOUSTON ENGINEERING, INC. 

 

____________________________   
Joe Lewis, PE, CFM      
Project Manager      
Direct: 763.493.6673      
jlewis@houstoneng.com     
  

Page 18 of 24



 
Judicial Ditch 1 - Pope CR 22 to Mud Lake Repair 
December 5, 2018 
Attachment A 
 
 

 

ATTACHMENT A. PROPOSED SCOPE OF WORK 
The project purpose is to partially restore the depth on the Main Trunk of the Pope-Stearns Judicial Ditch 1 
(JD 1) public drainage system between Pope County Road 22 and Mud Lake to the As Constructed or 
Subsequently Improved Condition (ACSIC). This scope of work follows the regulatory coordination tasks 
completed in 2018. The tasks below describe the steps necessary to complete the repairs. 

Task 1: Develop Repair Plans and Specifications 
Based on the work previously completed regarding regulatory coordination with the DNR, construction plans 
and specifications will be prepared consistent with a partial-depth repair at a profile generally based on the 
current culvert invert elevations of CR 22 and CR 33. Development of the construction planset includes 
determining an appropriate design cross section for a partial depth repair. The contract documents will be 
suitable to obtain quotes from contractors. 

Task 2: Regulatory Coordination 
HEI will assist the NFCRWD in providing the DNR with the final construction plans and specifications. This 
tasks also assumes some additional amount of correspondence will be necessary. 

Task 3: Construction Staking and Observation 
An HEI survey crew will provide construction staking for open channel excavation between stations 421+67 
and 570+36 at a 400-foot spacing. Additionally, line and grade offset stakes for a field crossing culvert 
replacement at stations 525+31 will be provided. HEI will perform construction observation and necessary 
coordination with the contractor as necessary to complete the repairs. We anticipate being on site for a pre-
construction meeting, twice during construction and once for a final inspection. 

Task 4: As-built Survey and Record Drawings 
For this task, HEI will collect as-built survey elevations and prepare an as-built record drawing to document 
the repaired profile.  
 
DELIVERABLES 
Our project scope and cost estimate will provide the following services and deliverables: 

1. Bid package including project specifications, bid form and engineering plan drawings necessary to obtain 
contractor bid quotes. 

2. Bid review and contractor recommendation. 
3. Construction staking 
4. Construction progress reports. 
5. Pre-construction meeting with NFCRWD, contractor and landowners 
6. Site visits 
7. As-built survey and record plan drawings 
   

 
  

Page 19 of 24



 
Judicial Ditch 1 - Pope CR 22 to Mud Lake Repair 
December 5, 2018 
Attachment A 
 
 

 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 
HEI will begin work on the project once a signed contract between HEI and the NFCRWD is executed (see 
attached HEI General Terms and Conditions).  

 
COMPENSATION 
Task 1: Develop Repair Plans and Specifications       $ 5,154 

Task 2: Regulatory Coordination                                                                              $ 1,540 

Task 3: Construction Staking and Observation                                                                            $ 7,616 

Task 4: As-built Survey and Record Drawings.                                                                            $ 4,635 

                     TOTAL COST                $18,945 
 

ASSUMPTIONS 

The estimated compensation associated with completing the scope of work is based on the following 
assumptions: 

1. NFCRWD will provide one set of comments on the draft bid documents. 
2. NFCRWD will coordinate with contractors to request bid quotes. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date first above written: 
 
CLIENT/OWNER  HOUSTON ENGINEERING, INC. 
 
 
BY:    BY:   
 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE   AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
 
TITLE:   TITLE:   
 
DATE:   DATE:   
 

PLEASE SIGN AND RETURN ONE COPY TO HOUSTON ENGINEERING, INC: 

Attn: Joe Lewis, 6901 East Fish Lake Road, Suite 140, Maple Grove, MN 55369 

 

 

 

Page 20 of 24



 

 

General Terms and Conditions   
 

January 24, 2017 1 

1. STANDARD OF CARE 

Houston shall perform its Services in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently 
practicing under similar circumstances in the region where the Project is located.    

2. PAYMENT TERMS 

Invoices will be submitted periodically (customarily on a monthly basis) and are due and payable upon receipt.  Client agrees to pay a service charge on all 
accounts 30 days or most past due at a rate equal to one percent (1%) each month but in no event shall such service charge exceed the maximum amount allowed 
by law.  Acceptance of any payment from Client without accrued service charges shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such service charges by Houston.  In 
the event Client is past due with respect to any invoice Houston may, after giving five (5) days written notice to Client, suspend all services without liability 
until Client has paid in full all amounts owing Houston on account of services rendered and expenses incurred, including service charges on past due invoices.  
Payment of invoices is not subject to discount or offset by Client.   

3. CHANGES OR DELAYS 

If the Project requires conceptual or process development services, such services often are not fully definable in the initial planning.  If, as the Project progresses, 
facts develop that in Houston’s judgment dictate a change in the Services to be performed, Houston shall inform Client of such changes and the parties shall 
negotiate, in good faith, with respect to any change in scope and adjustment to the time of performance and compensation and modify the Agreement 
accordingly.  In the event the parties are unable to reach an agreement, either party may terminate this Agreement without liability by giving fourteen (14) days 
written notice to the other party.  In the event of termination, the final invoice will include all Services and expenses associated with the Project up to the 
effective date of termination, and will also include equitable adjustment to reimburse Houston for any termination settlement costs incurred relating to 
commitments that had become firm before termination plus a 10 percent markup on those settlement costs.   

4. PAYMENT 

Where the method of payment under the Agreement is based upon cost reimbursement (e.g., hourly rate, time and materials, direct personnel expense, per diem, 
etc.), the following shall apply: (a) the minimum time segment for charging work is one-quarter hour; (b) labor (hours worked) and expenses will be charged at 
rates commensurate with the attached fee schedule or, if none is attached, with Houston’s current fee schedule (at the time of the work); (c) when applicable, 
rental charges will be applied to cover the cost of pilot-scale facilities or equipment, apparatus, instrumentation, or other technical machinery.  When such 
charges are applicable, Client will be advised at the start of an assignment, task, or phase; and (d) invoices based upon cost reimbursement will be submitted 
showing labor (hours worked) and total expense.  If requested by Client, Houston shall provide supporting documentation at Client’s cost, including labor and 
copying costs. 

5. TERMINATION 

Either party may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, by giving fourteen (14) days written notice to the other party, if the other party fails to fulfill its 
obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the terminating party.  In such event, and subject to the limitations set forth in this Agreement, the non-
defaulting party may pursue its rights and remedies as contemplated by this Agreement and as allowed by law.  

6. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

In no event shall Houston be liable for incidental, indirect or consequential damages of any kind.  Houston’s maximum cumulative liability with respect to all 
claims and liabilities under this Agreement, whether or not insured, shall not exceed the greater of $50,000 or the total compensation received by Houston under 
this Agreement.  The disclaimers and limitations of liability set forth in this Agreement shall apply regardless of any other contrary provision set forth and 
regardless of the form of action, whether in contract, tort or otherwise.  Each provision of this Agreement which provides for a limitation of liability, disclaimer 
of warranty or condition or exclusion of damages is severable and independent of any other provision and is to be enforced as such.  Client hereby releases 
Houston from any and all liability over and above the limitations set forth in this paragraph.   

7. INSURANCE 

Houston shall obtain and maintain during the term of this Agreement, at its own expense, workers’ compensation insurance and comprehensive general liability 
insurance in amounts determined by Houston and will, upon request, furnish insurance certificates to Client.  The existence of any such insurance shall not 
increase Houston’s liability as limited by paragraph 6 above.   

8. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES 

Client shall furnish or cause to be furnished to Houston all documents and information known by Client that relate to the identity, location, quantity, nature, or 
characteristics of any asbestos, pollutant or hazardous substance, however defined (“Hazardous Substances”) at, on or under the Project site.  Houston is not, 
and has no responsibility as a handler, generator, operator, treater, storer, transporter, or disposer of Hazardous Substances found or identified at the Project.  
Client agrees to bring no claim for fault, negligence, breach of contract, indemnity, or other action against Houston, its principals, employees, agents, and 
consultants, if such claim in any way would relate to Hazardous Substances in connection with the Project.  Client further agrees, to the fullest extent permitted 
by law, to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Houston, its principals, employees, agents, and consultants from and against all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses, direct or indirect, or consequential damages, including but not limited to fees and charges for attorneys and court and arbitration costs, arising out of 
or resulting from the performance of Houston’s Services hereunder, or claims brought against Houston by third parties arising from Houston’s Services or the 
services of others and/or work in any way associated with Hazardous Substance activities.  This indemnification shall survive termination of this Agreement.   

9. INDEMIFICATION  

Client shall indemnify, and hold harmless Houston, together with its officers, directors, agents, consultants and employees from and against any and all claims, 
costs, losses and damages, including attorneys' fees and other costs of litigation or dispute resolution arising directly or indirectly from Client’s breach of this 
Agreement or Client’s fault, negligent acts or omissions or intentional misconduct in connection with this Agreement or the Project.  Subject to the limitations 
set forth in this Agreement, Houston shall indemnify and hold harmless Client, together with its officers, directors, agents, consultants and employees from and 
against any and all claims, costs, losses and damages, including attorneys' fees and other costs of litigation or dispute resolution arising directly or indirectly 
from Houston’s breach of this Agreement or Houston’s fault, negligent acts or omissions or intentional misconduct in connection with this Agreement or the 
Project.  The indemnification obligations set forth in this paragraph shall survive termination of this Agreement.  

10. WARRANTY 

Except as specifically set forth in this Agreement, Houston has not made and does not make any warranties or representations whatsoever, express or 

implied, as to Services performed or products provided including, without limitation, any warranty or representation as to: (a) the merchantability or 

fitness or suitability of the Services or products for a particular use or purpose whether or not disclosed to Houston; and (b) delivery of the Services 

and products free of the rightful claim of any person by way of infringement (including, but not limited to, patent or copyright infringement) or the 

like.  Houston does not warrant and will not be liable for any design, material or construction criteria furnished or specified by Client and incorporated into the 
Services provided hereunder.     

Page 21 of 24



January 24, 2017 2 

11. PROJECT SITE 

Client shall furnish such reports, data, studies, plans, specifications, documents, and other information regarding surface and subsurface site conditions required 
by Houston for proper performance of its Services.  Houston shall be entitled to rely upon Client provided documents and information in performing the Services 
required under this Agreement.  Houston assumes no responsibility or liability for the accuracy or completeness of any such documents or information.  Houston 
will not direct, supervise, or control the work, means or methods of contractors or their subcontractors in connection with the Project.  Houston’s Services will 
not include a review or evaluation of the contractor’s or subcontractor’s safety measures.  The presence of Houston, its employees, agents or subcontractors on 
a site shall not imply that Houston controls the operations of others nor shall it be construed to be an acceptance by Houston of any responsibility for job-site 
safety. 

12. CONFIDENTIALITY 

Houston shall maintain as confidential and not disclose to others without Client’s prior consent all information obtained from Client that was not otherwise 
previously known to Houston or in the public domain and is expressly designated by Client in writing to be “CONFIDENTIAL.”  The provisions of this 
paragraph shall not apply to information in whatever form that (a) is published or comes into the public domain through no fault of Houston, (b) is furnished by 
or obtained from a third party who is under no obligation to keep the information confidential, or (c) is required to be disclosed by law on order of a court, 
administrative agency, or other authority with proper jurisdiction.  Client agrees that Houston may use and publish Client’s name and a general description of 
Houston’s services with respect to the Project in describing Houston’s experience and qualifications to other clients or potential clients. 

13. RE-USE OF DOCUMENTS 

All documents, including drawings and specifications, prepared or furnished by Houston (and Houston’s affiliates, agents, subsidiaries, independent professional 
associates, consultants, and subcontractors) pursuant to this Agreement are instruments of service in respect of the Project, and Houston shall retain ownership 
thereof, whether or not the Project is completed.  Client may make and retain copies for information and reference in connection with the Project; however, 
such documents are not intended or represented to be suitable for re-use by Client or others on extensions of the Project or on any other project.  Any re-use 
without written verification or adaptation by Houston for the specific purpose intended will be at Client’s sole risk and without liability to Houston or Houston’s 
affiliates, agents, subsidiaries, independent professional associates, consultants, and subcontractors with respect to any and all costs, expenses, fees, losses, 
claims, demands, liabilities, suits, actions, and damages whatsoever arising out of or resulting therefrom.  Any such verification or adaptation will entitle 
Houston to further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by Client and Houston. 

14. REMEDIES 

 Subject to the limitations set forth in this Agreement, in the event any party is in default of this Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall be entitled to pursue 
all rights and remedies available to it under this Agreement or as allowed by law.   

15. PROPRIETARY DATA 

The technical and pricing information in connection with the Services provided by Houston is confidential and proprietary and is not to be disclosed or otherwise 
made available to third parties by Client without the express written consent of Houston. 

16. GOVERNING LAW 

The validity, construction and performance of this Agreement and all disputes between the parties arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be governed 
by the laws, without regard to the law as to choice or conflict of law, of the State of North Dakota.  Client consents to jurisdiction as to all issues concerning or 
relating to this Agreement or the Project with the federal or state district courts designated for Cass County, North Dakota.   

17. DATA PRACTICES ACT REQUESTS 

Houston considers certain information developed during the execution of services as “not public” and “protected” from public disclosure under the various 
local, state and federal data practices laws.  Client shall reimburse Houston for any and all costs and expenses, including attorneys’ fees associated with any 
requests for release of information under any such laws.    

18. FORCE MAJURE 

Houston shall not be liable for any loss, damage or delay resulting out of its failure to perform hereunder due to causes beyond its reasonable control including, 
without limitation, acts of nature or the Client, acts of civil or military authority, terrorists threats or attacks, fires, strikes, floods, epidemics, quarantine 
restrictions, war, riots, delays in transportation, transportation embargos, extraordinary weather conditions or other natural catastrophe or any other cause beyond 
the reasonable control of Houston.  In the event of any such delay, Houston’s performance date(s) will be extended for that length of time as may be reasonably 
necessary to compensate for the delay.  

19. WAIVER OF JURY 

In the interest of expediting any disputes that might arise between Houston and Client, Client hereby waives its rights to a trial by jury of any dispute or claim 
concerning this Agreement, the Services, the Project and any other documents or agreements contemplated by or executed in connection with this Agreement.  

20. NOTICES 

Any and all notices, demands or other communications required or desired to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be validly given or 
made if personally served; sent by commercial carrier service; or if deposited in the United States Mail, certified or registered, postage prepared, return receipt 
requested.  If such notice or demand is served personally, notice shall be deemed constructively made at the time of such personal service.  If such notice, 
demand or other communication is given by mail or commercial carrier service, such notice shall be conclusively deemed given three (3) days after deposit 
thereof in the United States Mail or with a commercial carrier service.  Notices, demand or other communications required or desired hereunder shall be 
addressed to the individuals indicated in this Agreement at the addresses indicated in this Agreement.  Any party may change its address or authorized recipient 
for purposes of this paragraph by written notice given in the manner provided above.   

21. MISCELLANEOUS 

This Agreement shall take precedence over any inconsistent or contradictory provisions contained in any proposal, contract, purchase order, requisition, notice-
to-proceed, or like document regarding the Services.  If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid or unenforceable in whole or part by a court 
of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and be binding upon the parties hereto.  The parties agree to 
reform this Agreement to replace any such invalid or unenforceable provision with a valid and enforceable provision that as closely as possible expresses the 
intention of the stricken provision.  This Agreement, including but not limited to the indemnification provisions, shall survive the completion of the Services 
under this Agreement and the termination of this Agreement.  This Agreement gives no rights or benefits to anyone other than Houston and Client and has no 
third party beneficiaries except as may be specifically set forth in this Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and 
shall not in any way be modified, varied or amended unless in writing signed by the parties.  Prior negotiations, writings, quotes, and understandings relating 
to the subject matter of this Agreement are merged herein and are superseded and canceled by this Agreement.  Headings used in this Agreement are for the 
convenience of reference only and shall not affect the construction of this Agreement.  This Agreement and the rights and duties hereunder may not be assigned 
by Client, in whole or in part, without Houston’s prior written approval.  No failure or delay on the part of Houston in exercising the right, power or remedy 
under this Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof; nor shall any single or partial exercise of any rights, power or remedy preclude any other or further 
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or remedy hereunder.  The remedies provided in this Agreement are cumulative and not exclusive of 
any remedies provided by law.   

 

Page 22 of 24

ceilertson
Text Box
North Dakota.

ceilertson
Text Box
Cass County, North Dakota.



Created by:  AN
Last edited: 12/5/2018
Reviewed by: JL

Rates $178  $146  $117  $130  $172 

TASK DESCRIPTION
Project 
Manager Engineer III Engineer I Scientist II

2‐person 
Survey Crew Hours Labor Expenses

Labor + 
Expenses

Task 1.  Develop repair plans and specs 3 6 32 0 0 41 $5,154 $0 $5,154
Cross section design 1 6 6
Prepare repair plans  1 10
Prepare specifications 1 16

Task 2.  Regulatory Coordination 5 0 0 5 0 10 $1,540 $0 $1,540
Deliver construction planset to MN DNR for review of impact to public waters 1 1
Additional correspondence with DNR 4 4

Task 3.  Construction Staking and Observation 4 1 28 0 16 49 $6,886 $730 $7,616
Construction staking (15,000 feet ‐ 400 foot offsets) 1 16
Pre‐construction meeting 3
Construction observation 20
Final inspection 1 8

Task 4.  As‐built Survey and Record Drawings 1 2 8 0 16 27 $4,158 $477 $4,635
As‐built Survey and Record Drawings 16
Prepare record drawings 1 2 8

Totals 8 9 68 0 32 117 $17,738 $1,207 $18,945
*See Scope of Services for assumptions

Page 23 of 24



Page 24 of 24


	181113 ProposedMinutes.pdf
	BOARD OF MANAGERS
	Administrator’s Report.
	Funds Manager/Administrative Assistant’s Report. As reported.
	Drainage Report: CD 32 Repair: Status Update
	CD7: Buffer Payment Update.  Skonard reported letters were sent to landowners stating buffer payments will be made and requested landowners to submit IRS W-9 forms. Skonard anticipates buffer payments will be made in December.
	JD 1 Main and Branches: Status Update. Skonard reviewed the repairs and quotes from MBC Drainage, LLC regarding JD1, Branch 11; JD1, Branch 12, Fork 6 and JD1 Branch 10 repairs. Prices will be competitive. Last month an engineers’ estimate of $60,000 ...
	Dave Johnson inquired if a contract is in place for tree removal. Skonard shared he asked Nate Bettis to prepare a price quote for tree removal and will contact him again.
	Other Ditch Business.  None.
	Items for Next Meeting Agenda.




